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DESCRIPTION , .

{7} Excellent (# Good ' Fair [} Deteriorated [} Ruins [T} Unexposed
T Onay (Check One)

CONDITION “Chach One)
LK Atrzred 7] Unaltered ] Moved {B Original Site
DESCRIDE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL ({7 known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Sutton~Newby House is a rather small one-and-one-half story
eighteenth century dwelling with medieval elements. It has frame front and
rear elevations; originally both ends were of brick, but only the west brick|

end remains intact.

The four-bay front (north) facade is covered by a shed porch which
carries around the east shed addition; most of its fabric is probably re-
placed, but evidently a full-width porch was an original or early featrure
of the house, for the facade beneath the porch is covered with wide flush
boards. These form backs for one of the more important features of the
house~-the porch benches, one to either side of the front door. These are
themselves backless and extend nearly the length of the facade. Each con-
sists of a long single board with rounded edges, supported on sawn bracket-—
like bases, one in the middle and one at either end; at the ends flanking thsg
door the support rises in a sinuous J-shaped curved top above seat level,
serving as bench end. The robust curvilinear supports are apparently of
Ceorgian design and strongly resemble elements employed in the judge's
bench at the Chowan County Courthouse (built 1767) and in some pew bases in
Christ Church, Arlington, Virginia (built 1767-1773). It should be noted,
however, that somewhat similar benches occur on early nineteenth century
houses porches in Edgecombe County. The door, in the second bay from the
left, has been replaced, but the windows, set like the door in molded frames,
contain nine-over-six qash with wide muntins. The two gable dormers ace
apparently replacements; the absence of attic-level end windows suggests the’
original ewxistence of dofmersn

The weet end of the houss is of brick laid ian Flemish bond with glazed

headers; there are closers at each end and, in the gable, above a course of
Fnglish bond, the headers are arranged in chevron patterns paralleling the
slope uf the gable. The massive Flemish bond chimney has double shoulders,

s steep paved weatherings, a freestanding stack, and a molded cap.
brickwork shows that oviginally the elevation was symmetrical, with a

{ steeply sloping roofline on each side, but the rear roofline was changed to
allow the roof to extend over the rear shed extension, which may have heen
raised from an earlier one-story shed. A second-level window has been in-
serted to the rear of the chimney. The two window openings at the first

[

s

of brick around rhe windows is evident. A second chimney occurs at the east
end, but the brick end is gone, and the chimney is coverad by a shed addition

The interior of the house has undergone alterations on the first floor,
but some of the fabric survives, and the stair and second Floor retain eavly
telements. The plan is somewhat changed and may have had a center hall.

Door and window frames are molded, and the window architraves continue around
four sides and have no sill. A number of doors with six robust raised panels
hunz on HL hinges with tosehsad nails, survive as well. TIn the left front
voom there is a simple, rather curious mantel of uncertain perind. Two
vertical boards flank the square fire opening and the horizontal board above
it, and the inner and outer sides of each element are deeply and roundly
chamfered, terminating at each corner in a lamb's tongue. The simple shelf.

on brackets appears to bhe considecably larer

level have nine-over-six sash and are topped by wooden lintels; some reworking
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Rising back to front from about the center of the rear extension is a very
handsome closed-string Georgian stair, with posts square in section with
molded caps, and turned balusters carrying a heavy molded handrail. If it
is ovriginal, its position may have been altered when the rear extension was

gonsrLuct@d or, if a one-story shed preceded the present extenoL01, the stair
d

may have visen from that. The finish of the second floor is censistent and
gimple, the four six-panel raised-paneled doors, leading to the two

foOm3 on eac h side of a small central hall, have different kinds of moldings.
The molded door frames are simple as are the baseboards benesath plastered
walls. This flcor was apparently unheated.

GPO 921.724




(3. SIGNIFICANCE , , : e :

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)
{1 Pre-Columbian T} 16th Century (K] 18th Century {71 20th Ceniury
[ 151k Ceniury [ 17th Century ) 19th Century

SPECIFIC DATES) (If Applicable and Moo /1)

AREAS OF SIGHIFIcance (Check One or More as Appropriate)
(] Urban Planning

Aboriginal {7} Education ) Political
{7} Prohistoriz [7) Engineering 7] Religion/Phi. %} Other (Specify)
[ Historic ] Industry : losophy Exploration and
) Agriculture (7] Inveniion [} Science Settlement
[ Acchitectuie [ Landscape ] Sculpture .
(O As Architecture ] Social/Human-
) Commerca ] Literature itarian
o {1 Miditary {J Theater
[ Conservation [ Music 1 Transportation

STATEMEMNT OF SIGMNIFICANCE

The Sutton-Newby House, probably one of the oldest surviving buildings
in the state, is important as one of the few extant examples of rhe
medieval style of dwelling in the state. It is a member of the small
group of eighteenth century frame houses with brick ends in northeast
North Cavolina; the group includes the Myers-White House and the 01d Bric
House. The patterned glazed briclkwork and the form also relate ro the
Newbold~White House.

The Sutton-Newby House, much altercd, provides few clues fo +ts age
other than the suggestion of early eighteenth century vintage The history
of the property is incouclusive as to date of building, as som p Tt of
the farm oa which it stands has been occupied for nearly three centuries.

- ,
co
ton

U

u

of

(The 1733 Moseley Map shows Sutten's Creek near the present hous
name that survives to the present.) There are two key dates in
possible construction dates-~1713 and 1745. TIn 1713 Joseph Sut
(1673-1724) received a grant for the house site, although the land had
apparently been his since about 1682 (when he inherited it from his farher
Nathaniel) and had been included in a grant given his mother in 1684.
Possibly in 1713 he was clearing his title preparatory to building a house,
but it is not clear whether he lived on the immediate site of the present
house or on the lower half of the farm.

In 1745 Joseph Sutton IL (ca. 1700-1771) purchased the land 1ying
between the present house site and the main road; the house land crosses
this trvact. It is pessible he was rounding out his boundaries prepavatory
to building a house. The inconvenience of having a lane crossiag a
neighbor's land hints at a construction date after this purchase but
not of course prove it.

does

Joseph oufron IT had inhérited the house site in 1724. He marvied
in 1733 and began raising a family larger than that of his father. (Thus,
if he did not build the house he may well have been responsible for dits
early enlarsement.) He was a prominent plu@tpr who represented Perquimans
in the House of Commons between 1739 and 1760. He was also a justice of
the peace and one of the original directors of the Town of. Hertford. His

He

place. On his removal to a farm on Little River about 1765 he gave the
farm on Suttons Creek to his son Joseph III, confirming rhe gift by will

tanding on Sutrons Creek below his dwelline house was an official inspection

in 1771. Joseph Sutton I1T (ca. 1735~ca. 1794) was a captain of militin
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He ownzd the house until 1787 when financial difficulties reduced his estate.
In that year it was purchased by his son~in-law, Francis Newby.

Francis Newby (ca. 1752-1807) was a planter, keeper of the Hertford
ferry, justice of the peace, and member of the House of Commons (1795). He
removed to the house and willed it to his son Joseph in 1807. Joseph Newby
owned the house until his death about 1819. It then fell to his children,
of whom Joseph B. Newby was the last survivor; the property was sold to James
Whedbee in 1841. During the remainder of the nineteenth century the house
had a number of short—term owners, some of them non-residents. One of them,
Nathan Davis, has left his name with the house, which is locally referred to
as the Newby-Davis House. In 1914 the house was purchased by Ceorge B.
Benton (18A6-1943). Benton was a trustee of Woodland Methodist Church. At
his death in 1943 the property passed to his children and in 1961 it became
the sole possession of his daughter Beatrice and her husband Clyde L. Russell,
the present owners. ’

Despite alterations and the uncertainty of its history, the house 0
considerable sigopificance to the early development of domestic avchitectiure
in North Carolina. In his study of the medieval style in the south, H. C.°~
Fotman cices the house--referred to as the Davis House~-as one of the state's
few examples of the medieval characteristics more common in Virginia and
el ewhere in the geventeenth and eighteenth centuries. He notes particularly
"its quaiat gables decorated with chevrons in glazed brick.'” And, like
T. T. Waterman in The Earlv Avrchitecture of North Carolina, Forman calls
attention to the early rear addition rooms, a transitional step from the one-
room-deep to the two-room-deep plan. The medieval form of the hdouse relates
it to the Newbold-White House, also in Perquimans County, and to the 0ld Brick
House in Pasquotank County, which shares the brick end-frame front and rear
combination, as does the gambrel-roof Myers-White House in Perquimans County.
Thus rhe house, in spite of several changes, some quite early, is a rare and
important example of early building trends im the part of the state settled
first, having significance not only in itself but in its velacionship with
other early dwellings.

GPO 921.724
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